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SUBCOVM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 6
CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N Al right, good

nor ni ng, everyone. M nane is Mark Weprin and |’ m
chair of the Zoning and Franchi ses Subcommitt ee.
W shi ng everyone a very happy holiday season and
we're here today with the follow ng nenbers of the
subcomm ttee: Council Menber Leroy Conrie, Counci
Menber Robert Jackson, Council Menber Al Vann,
Counci | Menber Dan Garodni ck, Council Menber
Vi ncent Ignizio and nyself, Mark Weprin. W have a
nunber of itens on today’ s agenda. Sonme of the
items we have on we are |laying over. Lane Use
Nunmbers 961, 62 and 963, which is 77 Conmmerci al
Street. We'll have a... we’'re going to be having a
neeting later this week where we hope to take that
up. Land Use Nunber 987, Nello's; we already had
the public hearing on this and the committee is
recalling the applicant’s representative to read
the agreenent that we have and |’ m going to do that
right now Philip Robertson, who is here for
Nell 0. M. Robertson, please nmake your way to the
table. You got a nicer backdrop than usual
Usual | y that backdrop | ooks |ike you know, you're
in a hostage situation, but with a nice Seaside

Park thing it’s much nicer so please, if you'l
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 7
read the agreenent into the record. State your
nane for the record again and make sure the mc is
on. Thank you.

PHI LI P ROBERTSON: Good nor ni ng,

Council Menbers. M nane is Philip Robertson and
|’mrepresenting Nello Restaurant. 1’1l be reading
the letter of agreenent.

Dear Council Menber Garodnick, this
letter serves as our agreenent with the Chair,
Counci | Menber Mark Weprin, and the enconpassi ng
menbers of the Subcommttee on Zoni ng and
Franchi ses that we will commt to the foll ow ng:

1. To the renoval of the planters permanently
unless a permt is obtained in accordance with
regul ations for small unencl osed sidewal k caf es.

2. The tables will be set according to the approved
pl ans by the Departnent of Consuner Affairs. 3.
The restaurant’s doors and wi ndows wi || be cl osed
every night at 11:30 p.m 4. A direct phone nunber
for any conplaints is 212-980-9099. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON VEPRIN:  And 1'd like to
call on Council Menber Garodnick, who represents

Nell o’ s.
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SUBCOVM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 8

COUNCI L MEMBER GARCDNI CK:  Thank you
and briefly we appreciate your willingness to
reduce (background static). And we... as you know,
there were comrunity issues and community board
di sapproval of this item so we look forward to a
nore productive rel ati onshi p between the nei ghbors
and Nello’s going forward and we are glad to have
t he ongoing contact to be able to ensure that.
Thank you

PH LI P ROBERTSON: Thank you, sir.

CHAI RPERSON VWEPRIN:  We wi |l now nove
onto our next sidewal k café, which is The Randol ph
at Broone in Council Menber Chin’s district. M
eyes are not very good here, but 1'd |like to cal
up Hari Nathan Khan... what is that, Kaylan,
Esquire? You'll... you'll...

HARI NATHA KALYAN: [interposing]

CHAI RPERSON VWEPRI N [i nterposing]
You'll... youll say it, but your... you know your
handwiting is very small and ny eyes are very bad,
SO0 anyway, just state your nane for the record and

you can describe the application and I think we...




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

SUBCOVM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 9
okay and | know you have an agreenment that you want
to read into the record al so, so pl ease.

HARI NATHAN KALYAN: My nane’s Hari
Nat han Kal yan. | amthe owner/operator of The
Randol ph at Broone. |’ve submtted a... well, good
nor ni ng, Council Menbers and thank you for having
me. |’ve submitted a letter with exhibits in
response to sone of the issues that have arisen
regarding the sidewal k café. |[|’ve also put in sone
i nformati on about ny busi nesses and our |ocations
and no conplaint history and so on. |’malso
avail able for... to answer any questions or resolve
any issues. You have ny direct contact
information, so |I’m happy to work with the
community on any issues, so I'’mgoing to read an
enunmerated list of the corrective action taken in
response to the issues that have arisen.

| ssue nunmber 1: The sidewal k café
all eged to take up nore than 50 percent of the
si dewal k. The corrective action taken: The
railings have been tethered together and fixed to
the storefront. This will ensure that the end of
the café provides the correct anobunt of clearance

as per our approved diagrans, in conpliance with
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 10

DCA regul ations and that’s in Exhibit B, which are
photos of the tethered sidewal k café railings.

| ssue nunber 2: Wit service alleged
not to be provided. Corrective action: Qur staff
provides table service at all tinmes. The café is
open and al cohol is served only to seated
custoners. The only tinmes there would be standing
custonmers would be at times when the café is
cl osed. W have signs posted clearly that inforns
our custoners of our policies regarding table
servi ce, no snoking, respecting our neighbors and
keepi ng voices down, and that’s in Exhibit C, which
is... which are photos of the signs posted and
affixed to the storefront.

| ssue Nunber 3: Sandwi ch board bei ng
used to advertise. Corrective action: W do not
use a sandwi ch board and will not use one at any
point in the future.

I"ve al so annexed as Exhibit A a letter
from Conmunity Board 2 confirm ng that we have
never had any issues at any of ny |ocations.
al so have a third location in Brooklyn Conmunity

Board 1 that has not had any issues as well so.
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11

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N Al right, thank you

very nmuch. | know Council Menber Chin’s office has

been negotiating this with you and is confortable

with what you just read into the record. ‘Kay, so

|’ mgoing to nove to close this public hearing
because we have no one else to testify on it; on
Land Use Nunmber 1002 and we’ll close that and we
t hank you very nuch for comng. |I'msorry for
but cheri ng your nane.

HARI NATHAN KALYAN: Thank you very

nmuch.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N You’ re wel cone.

[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N: G ve us just one
mnute and we... we nmay vote on these first two
itemns.

[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Ckay. W're
joined by Coney Island s finest, Donenic M
Recchia, Jr. How are you, sir?

COUNCI L MEMBER JACKSON:  Doneni c!

[ appl ause]
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SUBCOVM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES
CHAI RPERSON VWEPRIN:  ‘ Kay, | nmade
the... | got RJ. started again. That was a

m st ake.

12

COUNCI L MEMBER JACKSON: Doneni ¢, East

Side Park, we’'re going to start there.
COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A: | know.
CHAI RPERSON VWEPRIN:  We're sort of...

we'reina... inalull at the nonent. W're

waiting for... [laughter] ‘Kay, we’'re waiting for

Donenic to...

COUNCI L MEMBER JACKSON:  Domeni c, you

pi ck up the check. 1’ve heard that before.

[l aughter] [background voi ces]

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N:  Okay, here we go.

W have our six for a quorumin the room See how

that works? So |I’m going to couple these two

restaurants; these two cafes, Nello' s and The

Randol ph at Broone, which we heard and have cl osed

the hearing on. These cafes have agreenents, so we

will call Ann McCoy [phonetic] to call the rol
to vote on these two cafes.
COWM TTEE CLERK: Chair Weprin.
CHAl RPERSON WEPRIN: | vote aye on

bot h.

and
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 13
COW TTEE CLERK: Chair Conrie.
COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Aye on bot h.
COWM TTEE CLERK: Council| Menber

Jackson. Council Menber Jackson on Land Use. ..

[l aught er]
COUNCI L MEMBER JACKSON: | vote aye on
bot h.
COWM TTEE CLERK: Council Menber Vann.
COUNCI L MEMBER VANN:  Aye.
COW TTEE CLERK: Council Menber
Gar odni ck.
COUNCI L MEMBER GARCDNI CK:  Aye.
COWM TTEE CLERK:  Council| Menber
| gni zi o.

COUNCI L MEMBER I GNI ZI O Aye.

COMWM TTEE CLERK: By a vote of six in
the affirmative, zero abstentions and zero
negative, Land Use Itens 987 and 1002 are approved
and referred to the Full Land Use Committee.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N:  Excel | ent,
al right.

[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Good norning. You

can have a seat... have a seat, M. Borough
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SUBCOVM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 14
President, while | introduce you and call up our
itemhere. Alright, |adies and gentlenmen, we are
now goi ng to hear Land Use Nunbers 994, 995, 996,
997, 998 and 999, known as the Seasi de Park and
Community Arts Center in Council Menber Donenic M
Rechhia, Jr’s district and we are going... with
perm ssion of the applicants, we are going to go
out side our normal rules and wel cone our guest for
the last tine as Borough President of Brooklyn I
believe at this commttee for sure. It is an honor
and a privilege to wel cone the Borough President of
Br ookl yn, Marty Markow t z.

MARTY MARKOW TZ: Thank you, thank you
t hank you, Mark. [applause] Thank you and | want
to say if I may, apart fromthis, Donenic, it’'s
really been an honor working with all of you and I
especially value ny relationship with Donenic
Recchia. He is everything you want in a public
official and he has truly nade historic
contributions in so nany ways. In many ways,
Donmenic, | have followed your |eadership and |’ve
been proud to do so. And also, to the Brooklynites
that may be here and New Yorkers, thank you for

letting ne be part of your life. M dreamin
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 15
public service if elected was only to be Brooklyn
Borough President and I’'Il admit it took ne many
years to get there, but | thank you for the
opportunity. | thank you

Anyway, |et ne thank Chairman Mark
Weprin and all the nenbers of the Cty Council Land
Use Subcommittee for Zoning and Franchises for the
opportunity to testify on the proposed Seasi de Park
and Community Arts Center. Wth the reopening of
Coney Island Library and the grand opening of a
brand new YMCA that Domand | were at at Conmunity
Center two weeks ago, it’s clear that at every step
of the way we’ ve been dedicated to getting Coney
I sl and back on its feet and focused on creating the
jobs, inproving infrastructure and providing
services that will make residents of Coney Island
even prouder of their neighborhood, and that’'s why
|’ m here today. There is no question that this
project, to bring the city’s first covered seasona
anphitheatre to Coney Island will be a trenendous
benefit to Coney Island and Brooklyn and all of New
York City. The Seaside Park and Community Arts
Center will add even nore energy and excitenment to

Coney Island. 1t’ll provide a new hone for summer
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 16
concerts and events by the boardwal k. It will
serve as a catalyst for residential and comercia
devel opnent and finally bring inprovenents so
desperately needed in the infrastructure of Coney
I sland, |ike water and sewer upgrades that reduce
fl oodi ng, which really inpact this nei ghborhood,
and other critical services that Coney Island s
West End residents have been seeking and absolutely
legitimately for years. Moreover, this project
will ensure that Coney Island is one of America’ s
top destinations for famly anmusenent and
entertai nnent, which increases tourism and
stimul ates the econony, and Coney Island residents
are in the best position and | ocation to reap the
rewards of this project. This anphitheatre wll
attract nore visitors. That neans nore retail;

t hat neans nore restaurants; nore businesses that

wi |l put Coney Islanders to work and create the
maxi mum nunber of jobs possible and even bring nore
housi ng, includi ng what we desperately need, and
that is affordabl e housing and of course, the
anphitheatre will create hundreds of good paying
jobs. The devel oper has conmitted to prioritizing

| ocal residents both for construction jobs and the
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SUBCOMM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 17
jobs that are required to run the anphitheatre, and
by reusing the historic Childs Restaurant buil ding,
whi ch, by the way, has been cl osed since before I
was born, but actually when | was two years old it
closed and that’s a few years ago, we can breathe
new life into this underutilized section of the
Ri egel mann Boardwal k and by buil ding a |ush
nei ghbor hood park where none exi sts now, we can
junmp start the Coney Island plan to deliver on the
city’'s prom se of building green spaces.

Now, there’s no doubt that this will be
one of the nost popular parks in the city.
Resi dents fromacross the city, especially those
that are within wal king di stance of Coney Isl and,
will flock to the area to enjoy seasona
entertai nnment and concerts, year-round seaside
dining and during the winter the nusic and food
wi Il continue inside this restored Childs building
that’ s been closed to the public all these years.
And in the sumrer, there’'ll be plenty of open space
where famlies can picnic, enjoy stunning views of
the ocean and it’s hard for you to inmagi ne, but
when you' re there you don’t even know there’ s an

ocean on the other side because your viewis
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 18
bl ocked in nost of the area, by the way. And kids
can run free in play areas that we need for the
famlies there. |In addition, when the concert
season’s over, the devel oper has pl edged to have
| ocal residents use the anphitheatre for conmunity
events and prograns of their choice.

For too many years, Coney |sland hasn’t
received the attention that it deserves. Public
housi ng has not been maintained as it should and
sadly, we know that’s true in the entire NYCHA
inventory. And infrastructure is in dire need of
i nprovenent and Sandy proved that big tinme, but
that’s exactly why we need the anphitheatre. [It’1]
keep the city’'s focus on Coney Island and its
needs.

So let nme thank Mayor Bl oonberg,

Speaker Quinn and especially Speaker Quinn to thank
her so very, very nuch and of course, M. Coney

| sl and, Domeni c Recchia, who |I’ve been thrilled to
work with to ensure that Coney Island finally
receives their long overdue attention that it
deserves and | also want to thank Deputy Mayor
Robert Steel; Gty Planning Conmm ssioner Amanda

Bur den; Purnama Kapoor, the head of the Cty
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 19
Pl anni ng Department’s Brooklyn O fice; of course,
Haeda M hal tses, Intergovernnmental Affairs; the
first Deputy Mayor’s Chief of Staff Nanette Smith
and EDC President Eneritus Seth Pinsky and
Brooklynite I mght add, and current President Kyle
Kinmball along with i STAR CEO Jay Sugar man;
Executive Vice President Karl Frey, and it’s been a
pl easure to work with Karl. And then |I’ve got to
say sonet hing about one person that’s here and if
you ever believe in an angel, and | do believe in
angels and | do believe that things happen for a
reason, and when Marty Cottinghamentered ny life;
| knew himbefore a little bit, but when he entered
ny life this Irishman, a proud Irishman, if there
was such a thing as a bl essing of an angel
visiting, | got to say that Marty Cottinghan s as
cl ose as you can get to that, of Avison Young, for
maki ng this vision cone true for the benefit of
this and future generations. | thank you for the
opportunity. Thank you, by the way, for your
service. W all know that as elected officials,
it’s a unique experience to work on behalf of the

public. W know that, but we wouldn’t exchange it
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 20
for any other profession. You know that and it’s
just a great opportunity that we’ ve had for years.

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Well, thank you
Bor ough President Markowitz, you' re going to make
us cry here. [applause] Thank you very much for
your service as well. You have been the nodel of
what a borough president should be and you’ ve done
an amazing job for the people of Brooklyn and
indeed the entire city of New York. | want to cal
on... you all... you wanted to speak now? Yeah,
okay, 1'd like to call Donmenic M Recchia, Jr. who
has coments. ..

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Yeah, | just
wanted to..

[ crosstal k]

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N:  To nmake to the
bor ough president.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Yes, | want to
say a fewwords. First of all, Marty, it’s been a
pl easure working with you. The |ast past 12 years
you’' ve been an outstandi ng borough president and
together we really acconplished sonething that nany

peopl e t hought woul d not ever happen, and that’s
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that revitalization of Coney Island, and not only
in Coney Island the amusenent area, but for the
residents and for the surroundi ng conmunities;

Bri ght on Beach and Bensonhurst, Bath Beach,

G avesend and just seeing so many good things
happen and | think the last thing to happen is for
this anmphitheatre to be built and | just want to
say that to make it clear to a | ot of people that
t hese concerts that you will be running; is that
correct?

MARTY MARKOW TZ: Well, | don’t know,

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCH A: Wl | ..
[laughter] The... the..

[ crosstal k]

MARTY MARKOW TZ: Not for. ..

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Not -for -
profit...

[ crosstal k]

MARTY MARKOW TZ: 35 years and...

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Alright, the

not-for-profit...

21
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 22

[ crosstal k]

MARTY MARKOW TZ: | hope they conti nue.

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A: But we will...

[ crosstal k]

MARTY MARKOW TZ: Let ne tell you.
COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  There will be

free concerts.

MARTY MARKOW TZ: | hope so. O
cour se.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Absol utely.
Absol utely free concerts. | want to nake this
clear. There will be free concerts just the way...
they will continue. |In addition to that, the

community will be able to also use this
anphitheatre. |Is that free of charge?

MARTY MARKOW TZ: Listen, | can’'t speak
for... but I would assune there’'ll be a m x of free
and fee...

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Ri ght.

[ crosstal k]

MARTY MARKOW TZ: Concerts and the

use... of course it’s... it for the... it’s good
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 23
for the anphitheatre to be used on the off season
by the cormmunity. That’s who it’s neant for

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Ri ght.

MARTY MARKOW TZ: So of course, it’s no
one el se.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Right. No,
because several people have asked ne and | just
want to set the record clear that there wll be
time set aside for the community...

MARTY MARKOW TZ: [i nterposing]

Absol utely.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  To be used.

MARTY MARKOW TZ: And that includes, by
the way, graduations...

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Ri ght,
graduati ons you know. . .

[ crosstal k]

MARTY MARKOW TZ:  You know for public
schools that want to do it outdoors rather than in
an audi torium

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Sure. A

nunber of schools already contacted nme to see if
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they’ d be able to have their graduations here and I
just want to set the record and...

[ crosstal k]

MARTY MARKOW TZ: Wel |l and certainly.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  So Marty,
t hank you very nmuch. You know | support this
proj ect .

MARTY MARKOW TZ: | know.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHIO Alright, we're
here to hear from ot her people.

MARTY MARKOW TZ: O course.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHIO  And | just
want to thank you for years...

MARTY MARKOW TZ: Thank you.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  For Brooklyn,
for Coney Island and working with ne and. ..

MARTY MARKOW TZ: And Buon Nat al e.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Buon Nat al e.
[ background voi ces]

MARTY MARKOW TZ: | guess that’s it so.

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Ckay, okay well,
t hank you very nmuch, Marty.

MARTY MARKOW TZ: Thanks everybody.

Thank you.
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CHAI RPERSON VEPRI N:  You’re on your
way. One nore round of appl ause [appl ause] for
Marty Markowi tz. Thank you and to you and your
famly.

[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON VWEPRI N Okay, now |I'd like
to call up the presenting panel for this project.
Har dy Adasko; Karl Frey; Scott Streeb and Howard
Weiss | believe is the group. GCentlenen, do we
need extra chairs? Sergeant-at-Arnms, could we get
one extra chair? W’re going to need a fourth
chair. Once the applicants will present, there’l
be questions I’msure fromthe panel, and then we
have people in opposition as well as people in
favor of the projects. They will be called up
all... we're going to start with people in
opposition and then people in favor. W’ re going
to have to limt people due to the hour and to the
anount of people to around two mnutes each, so in
your minds if you can try to sort your statenent
out and limt it to two mnutes and I'Il try to
give you a little leeway on that, but | can't give
you like that much nore than that, okay? That’|I

be after this panel and all the questions are done.
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‘Kay, gentlenen, whenever you’re ready.
[ background voi ces]

HARDY ADASKO On? ‘Kay, good norning.
My nane is Hardy Adasko, Senior Vice President of
Pl anni ng, New York City Econom c Devel opnment
Cor poration, here to speak on behal f of the Seaside
Par k Proj ect.
In 2008, the council approved an

anbi tious vision for Coney Island and nenorialized
a variety of actions to inplenent that, and the
results have been spectacul ar since then. At that
time, the concerts had existed for several decades
in Asser Levy Park and there were plans and funds
allocated to build a nore permanent facility with a
roof, which we assunmed woul d happen. Later, it
becane obvious that there were problens with that
| ocation and at the borough president’s request,
EDC worked with other comrunity |leaders to find
alternate locations. W |ooked at a wide variety
of locations, particularly using the ballpark and
squeezi ng concerts in; however, with the very dense
schedul e of m nor | eague ganes during the three
nonth period and the need for set up and take down

on a grass field, that was not feasible. W also
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| ooked at using the very tenporary |ocation that
they are at today. Doing that would ve entailed a
delay in the affordable housing that is planned for
that site; m xed use housing; of 10 years and that
was not an acceptable scenario. And so we settled
on what is really | believe was a perfect plan;
perfect because it will continue the concerts; wll
lead to the reactivation of the |andmark Childs
buil ding as a year-round facility, restaurant,
entertai nnent venue and seasonally part of it being
used as a stage for the concert series. In
addition, it will provide funds for the creation of
the park that was identified in the council’s
earlier approval that will be built and wll
survive the concert series and becone a public park
at the end. In addition, the current users of the
site, a relocation site has been found for them on
HPD property a couple of blocks away, and they w ||
be able to continue even though that site is not
part of... has not been part of the G een Thunb
Program for many years. And the venue is designed
to neet three standards of noise regulation, both
in terns of distance froma sensitive receptor, in

terns of noise | eaking outside of the facility and
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in terns of the increase in noise in the

nei ghborhood. It will not have adverse inpact.
Wth that, | urge you to support the project and |
turn it over to the rest of our team |’ m happy to

answer questions when the tinme cones.

KARL FREY: Good norning, Chair,
council persons and intrepid staff. M nane is
Karl Frey. |’ m Executive Vice President of iSTAR
Financial, a real estate investnent trust trader on
t he New York Stock Exchange.

i STAR has conpl eted nore than $35
billion of commercial real estate investnents
during its 14-year history. Wile many fi nanci al
institutions elected to liquidate investnents
during the downturn of the real estate markets
recently, i STAR has decided to take a long-term
approach with its portfolio and has becone one of
the largest residential and | and devel opers in the
country. Qur current portfolio includes properties
in the Coney West subdistrict of the special Coney
Island district that represent approximtely 70
percent of Coney West’'s devel opable floor area.

Wil e we have begun to plan for the

devel opnent of our Coney West properties involving
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mar ket rate and affordabl e housing, current
conditions in Coney West hanpered our ability to
nove ahead with the planned construction. W
brought our stalled plans to the attention of the
Br ookl yn borough president and it was suggested
that i STAR work with the city to develop an interim
use for Coney West involving a seasona
anphitheatre in tandemw th restoring the | andmark
Chil ds Restaurant and creating an expansive
nei ghbor hood park. After careful study, we
concluded that this project could stinulate our
residential devel opnent, the devel opnent i ntended
by the Coney Island rezoning, in the sane way the
Bank of America Pavilion, the 5,000 seat
anphi theatre at Boston’s Faneuil, was a catal yst
for residential and commerci al devel opnent in the
Bost on Harbor area, including a highly successful
Park Lane Seaport and $130 million residential
devel opnent of 465 units that was conpl et ed
directly across the street fromthe Bank of America
Pavi | i on.

We are pleased to join with Coney
I sl and USA, a comunity-based non-profit

organi zation that has a 33-year history of
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sponsori ng nei ghborhood events and advocating for
the betterment of Coney Island to devel op the
project for the city and oversee its operations
during the 10 year term of the proposed speci al
permt. There will be a total of 40 to 50 free and
pai d concerts throughout the season from April
t hrough Cctober. 15 of those will be the free
Seasi de Sunmer Concert series. W wll expect that
these will be run by the renowned concert pronoter
and arti st manager, John Scher, with his team at
Metropolitan Entertai nment and they have been
wor ki ng with us throughout this preapproval
process. On non-event days, in season and during
the rest of the year, the plaza will be used for
comuni ty-based cultural, civic, educational and
recreational activities. The comunity-based
programm ng will be organi zed by Coney I|sland USA
in consultation with the Comrunity Advisory
Commi tt ee.

The Childs building will be restored
for restaurant and catering use, including the
historic use of its roof for outdoor dining. The
restoration and operation of the Childs at the sane

time that the anphitheatre construction will be
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conpleted is a critical conponent of the project.
Al t hough the project is being developed with city
capital funds, the operation and mai ntenance of the
park and anphitheatre will be supported solely by
the income fromthe Childs operations and the paid
concert events.

The expansive park conponent of the
project will be accessible to the nei ghborhood at
all tines, including when the concert events are
taki ng place in the anphitheatre portion of the
project site. At the end of the special permt
term the Parks Departnent will take over the
operation and mai ntenance of the park. The park
has been designed in close collaboration with the
Par ks Departnent, and the ground | ease for the
project details the park condition and anenities
that are required at the tinme the Parks Departnent
assunes jurisdiction over the property at the end
of the 10-year special permt.

i STAR is commtted to being a partner
in the future of Coney Island and believes that the
anphi t heatre devel opnment will both neet the goals

establ i shed by the Coney Island rezoni ng and spur
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the residential devel opnent planned in the Coney
I sl and West subdistrict. Thank you.

SCOIT STREEB: H . M name is Scott
Streeb. I'mw th M chael Van Val kenbur gh
Associ ates, Landscape Architects and 1'd like to
begin just by wal king you through sone existing
site photos.

Here you see the historic Childs
Restaurant in much need of repair. Al the
architectural detailings are falling apart. W
propose to revitalize this building. The site
currently has a bus parking lot, which we wll
rel ocate and repurpose as park | and and as
President Markowitz stated earlier, the entire site
is much | ower than the boardwal k | evel, so you
can’t really get a sense of the ocean beyond. W
propose to bring the park up to the boardwal k | evel
wi t h handi cap accessi bl e grades.

Through a | ot of coordination with New
York City Parks and New York City Planning, we have
devel oped this site plan. It has anenities for al
ages, including a playground at the north here; a
nmeanderi ng garden with picnic seating and | ush

horticultural planting for the elderly group and a
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| arge | awn space oriented towards the community for
picnics. Lastly, we have the paved area, which can
seat 5,000 people and will be a conmunity art space
and concert venue for Coney Island. There s three
different conditions for the plaza space with
regard to its covering. 1’Il get into that a
little nore detailed in a second.

Wth regard to parking, this diagram
showing in blue, are the proposed parking areas.
W will utilize the existing lot for the basebal
stadi um and during nights where there are
concurrent events, both at the baseball stadium and
the project site, we will utilize the parking | ot
at the aquarium and shuttle visitors to and from
that site.

Here we’'re showi ng you a site section.
This is going to highlight the three different
condi tions of the anphitheatre roof. During the
of f season in the winter nonths, the anphitheatre
roof is conpletely renmoved fromthe site. During
the season, a large portion remains up as a shade
structure and sem - permanent covering and on the
ni ght of events we deploy an additional fabric

regi on, which provides acoustical insulation.
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Here’'s a view | ooking up the access of
22nd Street with the view out to the ocean that we
were tal king about earlier, the sem -permanent
anphi theatre roof and the anphitheatre seating to
the right. Wen an event is in place, that’'s the
additional fabric region that's deployed to create
acoustical insulation. Here' s an aerial view just
giving you a sense of its relationship to the ocean
and the boardwal k; a view al ong the boardwal k with
the revitalized Childs building and park space; a
vi ew | ooki ng east towards the Parachute Junp
showi ng the | awn space and the garden space and
lastly, a view of the plaza on a day where the
comrunity is using it for either a Farnmers Market
or a children’ s perfornmance, whatever the community
decides to use it for. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N: Thank you. Before
we nove on, | just want to acknow edge that Larry
Scott Bl acknon fromthe Parks Departnent, Deputy
Conmi ssi oner of Parks is here as well and he'll be
testifying a little bit as well. 1Is he testifying
as well for... right now or... [background voi ces]
kay wel |, you can go ahead, Larry, okay. Sorry we

| eft you out.
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DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BLACKMON:  Ch, no
problem Let ne get alittle closer. Good
norni ng, Chair Weprin and nenbers of the
Subcommi ttee on Zoni ng and Franchises. | amlLarry
Scott Bl acknon, Deputy Comm ssioner for Comunity
Qutreach with the New York City Departnent of
Parks. Thank you for allowing ne to speak to you
this nmorning on the Coney |sland Seaside Park and
Community Arts Center project, and before | begin,
I’d like to acknowl edge several Parks Departnent
staff menbers that are with me: our Director of
Governnent Affairs, Karen Becker and it pleases ne
to introduce our new Director of the G een Thunb
Community Garden Program Nancy Kohn; [appl ause]
Rol and Chaoul oute, the Deputy Director of G een
Thurmb is with us, as well as Jennifer Kao from
Par ks Pl anni ng.

Thi s proposed project involves the
devel opnent of approxinmately two and a half acres
of publicly accessible open space in Coney Island,
Br ookl yn, including a 5,100 seat seasonal
anphi theatre for concerts and other events. Over
the past year, Parks along with City Pl anning and

the Public Design Comm ssion have worked with the
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applicant to inprove upon and influence the design
before you today, including incorporating standard
parks details and specifications. This open space
wi |l extend between West 21st Street and West 23rd
Street al ong R egel mann Boardwal k, and will include
passive and active recreational areas. The design
i ncl udes | andscapi ng and pl ayground anenities
| ocated at the northwestern corner. The defining
feature of this open space would be a | arge
| andscaped | awmn area that would serve as a pl ace
for lawn seating and passive recreation. A steeped
path extending off of the plaza will lead visitors
down to Ri egel mann Boardwal k and to new public
restroomfacilities. The open space will also
feature a planted entry garden with native
pl antings and bench seating at the southwestern
portion of the devel opnent site. The proposed
anphitheatre will operate between May and Cct ober
During the concert season, the anphitheatre would
be fully accessible to the public, except during
ticketed events. Tenporary screening around the
seating area would allow other areas of the open
space to be used while events are taking pl ace.

The proposed anphitheatre and ot her project
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el enents are expected to be conpleted by the sunmer
of 2015.

As part of the 2009 Coney Island
rezoning, the portion of the project area west of
22nd Street was designated as an approxi mately one
and a half acre nei ghborhood park. The tax lots
that conprise H ghland View Park are privately
owned and have not been formally established as
public park land. This project will create new
open space in that area. The open space will be
mai nt ai ned and managed at the applicant’s cost for
the next decade. Upon conclusion of the 10-year
special permt, the Hi ghland View Park portion of
the site will be transferred to Parks for operation
as a public park. This park land will include the
expansi ve | awn and pl ayground anenities nentioned
earlier and we anticipate that this park land w |
be well-used addition to the New York City Parks
portfolio.

I would also like to address the status
of Block 7071, Lot 142, the |ocation of a
previ ously decomm ssi oned community garden. Bl ock
7071, Lot 142, referred to as Boardwal k Garden, was

assi gned the Parks of DCAS on July 15th, 1997. A
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communi ty garden was |licensed for the site through
G een Thunmb until 2004, when it was decomn ssi oned
as part of the Coney |sland conprehensive rezoning
pl an that was approved in 2009. On August 20t h,
2013, the Parks Departnent surrendered Bl ock 7071,
Lot 142 to DCAS as part of the Coney Island
rezoni ng proposed developnent. It is extrenely
inportant to note that this property is not, nor
was it ever mapped as park land. 1In 2002, there
was a settlenment agreement with the New York State
Attorney General’s O fice over devel opnent of
community garden sites. The agreenent specified
that gardens in the Park’s jurisdiction wuld be
overseen by the Green Thunb Program unless the city
determned that it intended to sell or devel op any
such garden lot. It was also established by the
settl ement agreenent that devel opment of any
licensed garden site was required to undergo review
in accordance with the Garden Review Process. The
Garden Review Process for this earlier Coney Island
ULURP required that the gardener of record be
notified and provided a list of available city-
owned vacant land if any within a half mle of the

exi sting garden to provide for an alternative
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gardening site. Parks worked with the gardener of
record to provide an alternate | ocation. |n August
of 2004, the gardener of record agreed to relocate
to an alternate site in Coney Island on West 28th
Street and Surf Avenue and infornmed the G een Thunb
office of this decision in witing. The garden was
then relocated to the alternative site. Since the
city had reached agreenent with the gardener or
record to previously surrender and relocate to the
new site, under Section 6E3 of the settlenent
agreenent, there was no requirenment that the city
conply further with the Garden Revi ew Process.
Since that tinme, Block 7071, Lot 142 has not been
Iicensed by the Green Thunmb Program and no
aut hori zed garden activities have taken pl ace
there. Al though not a registered Geen Thunb
garden and not subject to the Garden Revi ew
Process, Parks has, as a sign of good faith, worked
wi th the devel oper, i STAR, to nmake inprovenents;
significant inprovenents at an existing garden to
accommodat e addi tional gardeners. Additionally,
any nenber of the community who wi shes to garden
can avail thenselves at any one of the five

communi ty gardens in Coney Island, and we are nore
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t han happy to take nenberships at those gardens at
any tinme.

| thank you for the opportunity to
speak before you today and wel cone any questions
you may have, and 1'd like just to close, if |
don’t have the nonent, just to say thank you to
Counci | Menber Donmenic Recchia. I1t’'s been a
pl easure and a joy to work with you, not just on
this project, but on many Parks projects cityw de.
You’' re an ardent supporter of our agency and on
behal f of Conmi ssioner Wiite | want to thank you
and the sanme to Council Menber Leroy Conrie and
Counci | Menber Robert Jackson, as this is probably
the last forumlI’ll have to do so publicly. Thank
you. Thank you

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N: Okay and then
Howard, you' re going to now testify as well?

HOMRD WEI SS: [off mc] Yes.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N:  Ckay, okay.

HOMRD WEISS: [off mc] I’'lIl be brief.
Good norning, M. Chair, Council Menbers. Howard
Wei ss, Davidoff, Hutcher and Citron. W’re project
counsel. |’ve submtted statements from severa

i ndi viduals who are in support of the project that
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could not be here and you, | believe, have copies.
One was a statenment from M. Mron Wniarsky, whose
famly owns a good part of the properties adjacent
to the project site, including a 40 unit
residential building that’s imedi ately adjacent to
the site, and he explains in his statenent the
reasons for his strong support; a statenent from
Charl es Denson, Executive Director of the Coney
I sl and Hi story Project and the author of a nunber
of wel |l -known books about the history of Coney
| sl and, again strongly supporting the project. And
|astly, a statenment from Juan R vero on behal f of
Save Coney Island, a community advocacy group
that’s been active in Coney |sland over the years
advocating for the betternment of Coney Island.

During the Public Review Process there
were a nunber of issues that arose and |’ d just
like to very briefly tell you how they’ ve been
addressed and they have been addressed. One, there
had been a concern about noise inpacts, and as the
FEI'S and the other ULURP docunents that you’ ve seen
reveals, this project will be entirely conpliant
with the city’s Noise Control Code and it’s been

designed in a way so that the activities that wll




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

SUBCOMM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 42
be undertaken on site will have no inpacts based
upon the standards in the CEQR nanual, and Scott
briefly described and showed you the base design of
the project that’'s going to provide for the sound
attenuation that assures that there will be no
i npacts. There were concerns about traffic
i npacts. There’s a Menorandum of Under st andi ng
that’s been entered into between the project
devel oper and the police departnment to provide
traffic enforcenent agents, the cost of which will
be paid for by the project to the extent that when
there are activities at MCU Park and there are
concerts at the sane tinme, if there would be any
potential inpacts, those would be mtigated by the
use of the TAs. There was al so concern about the
communi ty garden and | think Comm ssioner Bl acknon
has adequately and very forcefully expl ained the
status and what the project team has done to
accommpdat e t hose who are the gardeners and you can
see on the site plan the relocated community
garden, which is only five bl ocks west of the
boardwal k garden. It’s in green on the map up on
the wall and you should know that in fact, the

pl anting beds have been installed, fresh topsoi
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has been delivered and there are persons who have
already laid claimto sone of the plots at the
rel ocated garden site who are active at the
boar dwal k garden

We think that this project, based upon
everything that’s been revealed in the FEI S and
ULURP docunents, shows in many different ways how
it wll, in fact, be a positive influence on the
community and will, in fact, at the end of the day
achi eve the objectives of the Coney Island plan and
ultimately not only provide real life and activity
at this west end of the boardwal k, but will, in
fact, give a junp start to the devel opnent of the
housi ng that was critical to the Coney West
subdi strict, in which the project site is |ocated,
and with that, | thank you for your attention.

Okay, we can go back. So the actions
that were approved by the Pl anni ng Conmi ssion that
are before you nowis a nodification of the
approved city map change. At the tine of the Coney
I sl and rezoning, there was a mapping action to
establish H ghland View Park that was described by
Commi ssi oner Bl acknon and by Scott Streeb and al so

t he demappi ng of West 22nd Street that runs through
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the project site. To facilitate the anphitheatre
we're adm nistratively separating the mappi ng of
Hi ghl and View Park fromthe demappi ng acti on and
that’s the first action that’s before you for
approval ; a zoning map change that will extend the
Coney Island West subdistrict of the Specia
District to include fully the project site. R ght
now the Hi ghland View Park portion does not lie
Wi thin the subdistrict. The acquisition of
property by the city, as was nentioned, other than
Lot 142, the former comunity garden site, the
bal ance of the project site is privately owned and
you wi Il be approving the acquisition of those
private properties, nost of which, except for the
Chil ds building, would needed to have been acquired
to realize the devel opnment of Hi ghland View Park,
so this project accelerates the acquisition of the
properties for the devel opnent of the comunity-
based park that was approved by part of the Coney
I sland rezoning. Then there’'ll be a disposition of
city-owned property, but once the land is acquired
it will be disposed to EDC s Local Devel opnent
Corporation through a | ease agreenent between the

city and the Local Devel opnent Corporation and then
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subl eased to the entity that will be operating the
project. And I should enphasize and it needs to be
understood that the project site when the project
goes forward will be entirely owned by the city and
the project is being devel oped entirely with city
capital funds and in fact, this project is a
muni ci pal facility. That for the 10-year speci al
permt termw |l be operated by a partnership
bet ween Coney | sl and USA, the comrunity-based not -
for-profit and an i STAR entity as it will be
devel oped by that partnership, but it is all being
done on behalf of the city for a mnunicipal project.
There’s a zoning text change that establishes a
special permt that allows the anphitheatre use.

Ri ght now the special use provisions of the Coney
| sland Special District allows for an anphitheatre
of 2,000 seats and this increases the capacity to
5,100 seats and then the special permt itself, the
proposed special permt, which would allow the
anphi theatre use of the project site. Thank you
very much

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Thank you. 1°'d
like to call on Council Menber Recchia, who has

some questions. [background static] W al so..
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Doneni ¢, one second. W’ ve been joined by Counci
Menber Jessica Lappin as well.

COUNCI L MEMBER JACKSON:  And Di ana
Reyna.

CHAI RPERSON VEPRIN:  Oh, and Di ana
Reyna. | didn't see you there, D ana. Counci
Menmber Di ana Reyna.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A1 ‘ Kay, thank
you, M. Chairman and thank you for this hearing
today. Good norning, gentlenmen. | just have a few
qgui ck questions. As far as hiring is concerned,
are you... what's the issue wth that on hiring
| ocal fromthe Coney Island comunity?

HOMRD WEI SS: There’s been an absol ute
comm tment, M. Council Menber, to hire locally and
in fact, there’s already been an outreach to the
community. You' re going to hear testinony from
Keith Suber of the Suber Foundation, who, as you
know is very proactive in the community in terns of
fostering |l ocal enploynent and there is an absolute
commtnent in witing to foster that |local hiring
with respect to both the devel opnment of the
proj ect, construction jobs and operations once the

project is built.
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COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A: kay and are
you building this prevailing wage?

HOMARD WEI SS: Prevail i ng wage and
prevail i ng wage benefits, yes and that’s, in fact,
menorialized in the fundi ng agreenent between the
city and the project partnershinp.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A: Okay and the
comrunity use of the facility; could we just talk
about that a little bit?

HOMRD VEI SS: Yes, there will be 15
free concerts and up to 25 paid concerts during the
concert season. All other tinmes; all other tines
this project site will be available for community-
based use. It was no coincidence that this project
is called the Seaside Arts Community Center because
the visionis that it’s a conmunity-based facility.
To facilitate and ensure transparency and
i ncl usi veness, there will be a Community Advisory
Conmm ttee established and we will work with the
council menber and the community board and
st akehol ders in the community to formthat
Community Advisory Conmittee and they will work
with i STAR and Coney |Island USA in setting up

protocols and determ ning the appropriate uses and
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we envision the way the project site’ s been
desi gned; anything from concerts; comrunity-based
concerts; dance recitals; graduations; educationa
events, flea markets. The potential for comrunity-
based use is as expansive as one’ s inmagination
woul d t ake us.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Okay, | just
want to make sure that schools will be able to have
their graduations there.

HOMRD VEI SS:  And we actually... and
believe you will be hearing fromthe Coney Island Y
this norning and we’ve been engaged with them and
working with themto hel p begin the process of
t hi nki ng about how we programthis, but at the end
of the day, it will be totally inclusive in terns
of the broad comunity interest.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A: Okay and the
schools to have their graduations. This was very
clear. They' |l be able to have their
graduations. ..

HOMRD WEI SS:  Yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A: There? kay.

HOMRD VEI SS:  Yes.
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COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHIA: I n addition to
that, those docunments where you said this is in
witing, we would |ike copies of those. |Is that
possi bl e?

HOMRD VEI SS:  Yes, | think the Land
Use staff has, but | will review after today’s
pr oceedi ngs. . .

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Yeah, if we
coul d just see..

[ crosstal k]

HOMARD WEI SS: What you have and nake
sure that you have everything.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A1 kay, alright,
you could work with..

[ crosstal k]

HOMRD \VEI SS: Absol utely.

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Qur staff,
Al onzo, absolutely. Alright, | have no further
questions. Thank you very nuch.

HOMRD VEI SS:  Thank you, sir.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRIN:  1'd like to cal

on Council Menber Conrie for a question.
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COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Alright, you
al luded that there were gardeners. How nmany
gardeners that were there and have they al
transferred?

HOWARD VEI SS: They all have not
transferred and 1’ mnot sure how many i ndivi dual s
really are there. Sone who were there have, in
fact, laid claimto plots on the West 29th Street
site, others have not and that’s an open process
and they’ ve been invited to transfer to that site.
And let nme just say, we spent a year trying to
identify appropriate | ocations because we
recogni zed that although this was not a sancti oned
comruni ty garden, the gardeners who have been there
t hey’ ve devel oped a sense of comunity and it was
very inportant to try to find an appropriate site
Wi thin the community where they could all be
rel ocated together so they could stay together as a
gardeni ng conmuni ty.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: Mm hm

HOMRD WEI SS: And fortunately, the
West 29th Street site was underutilized and it wll
acconmpdat e everyone who's at the forner boardwal k

garden site and we worked very closely with New
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York City Parks G een Thunb to ensure that would
happen.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Ckay. Yes,
Conmi ssi oner .

CHAI RPERSON VWEPRI N: M. Bl acknon, nake
sure to state your nane.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BLACKMON:  Sur e,
Larry Scott Bl acknon, Deputy Conmm ssioner of Parks.
Si nce 2004, there was no |license agreenent with
anyone at the site because at that tinme the
gardener of record, who was recogni zed by the city,
had agreed to nove to a different site under...

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: Ri ght.

[ crosstal k]

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BLACKMON: A

previously agreed upon..

COUNCI L MEMBER COWRIE: Right, | read
that. I1'mclear that...

[ crosstal k]

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BLACKMON:  So. ..

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  The peopl e that

were there were there without. ..
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[ crosstal k]

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BLACKMON:  Par k
| i cense.

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRIE: W thout a
permt, but they were there.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BLACKMON:  Ri ght
and so we’ve been working with them nonet hel ess.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: Ri ght.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BLACKMON:  And
woul d say that we’ve had several neetings with them
and | would say that there were maybe 15 to 20.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: And you said
there are other gardens in the area also that...

[ crosstal k]

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BLACKMON:  Yes.

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Peopl e can

utilize?
DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BLACKMON:  Yes.
COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Ckay, alright.
Vell, 1"’mgood. | just wanted...

[ crosstal k]
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DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BLACKMON:  Thank
you.

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  To know t hat
they’ re having an opportunity to utilize a new
space.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BLACKMON:  We're
tryi ng our best.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: Alright, thank
you.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BLACKMON:  Thank
you.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Just one ot her
question. You tal ked about the graduations. Can
any school in Brooklyn now utilize the site or will
this just be for Coney I|sland school s?

HOMRD WEI SS: No, the... [laughter]
Coney Island schools have priority.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: Al right.

HOMRD VEISS: It’s a Coney Island
based facility, but it’s there for the borough and
it'’s there for the city, so again, it wll be

progranmmed and nmade avail able to appropriate
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comuni ty- based uses, whether it’s Coney Island or
whether it’s Kings County.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Ckay and wil |
this be free to themor will there be a..

[ crosstal k]

HOMRD VI SS: We'll work... we'll have
to work that out and the... there is going to be
during the 10 years of the operation of this
facility no city funds used to support it.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Ckay.

HOMRD VEI SS: So what we expect is
that the paid concerts and excess revenues that
will be realized through the operation of the
Childs building, that will be sufficient to support
t he mai ntenance and operation of the facility. To
the extent that’s possible, then yes, it would be
free to the extent that there may be a shortfall,
so there may be sonme minimal costs, but the
objective is for it to be free. And let me just
say also, with respect to the paid concerts,
there’s a conmtnment to provide to comunity
residents a nunber of subsidized | ower rate concert
ti ckets recognizing that we want to optim ze the

community’s use of this facility, not only for the
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free concerts, but also at the tinmes when there are
pai d concerts.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRIE:  And will you
al so be teaching children nmusic since you' re
focusing on concerts? |Is there a conponent in
there that will be giving people an opportunity to
enjoy nusic at sone point or |earn nusic or
under st and nusic?

HOMARD WEI SS: As part of the program
in the facility, Coney Island USA and i STAR w ||
work with comunity groups, and one of the visions
was that the educational aspect of this facility
and that it could be used for that purpose, so we
wll ook to work with conmmunity-based groups that
engage in that sort of activity to provide that
ki nd of opportunities for local children.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: Right and the
anphi theatre, all of those pieces will be stored
within this site and who’'s. ..

[ crosstal k]

HOMRD WEI SS:  Yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRIE: Going... and is

there going to be a separate entity that will be
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doing the lighting and the sound or is that al
part of the sane entity?

HOMRD WEISS: It’s all part of...
Metropolitan Entertai nment woul d oversee that and
what happens is acts cone in with their lighting
and with their equipnent and then there’' |l be
permanent lighting that’'s on the site and that’|
all be organi zed by the concert operator.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRIE: And will there
be opportunities for training and teaching for
people to be light and sound and stage technicians
as well since that’'s going to be a major conponent ?

HOMARD WEI SS: W haven’t thought about
that, but that’s an interesting idea, Counci
Menber, and | think it’s sonething that we can
seriously consider and discuss with Coney Island
USA and the community groups that will be
participating in progranmng the site.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRIE: | woul d
strongly suggest that as well and that could go to
all Brooklyn residents as well, not just Coney
| sland residents that may want to | earn that since

that is a big part of New York now. | would
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strongly suggest that be added. That’'s it. Thank
you.

HOMRD VEI SS:  Thank you, Counci
Menber .

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N:  Thank you
Counci | Menber Di ana Reyna has sone questions.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: Thank you, M.
Chair. | apologize for comng in late. There' s an
opportunity here. | wanted to just comrend the
wor k of Council Menber Recchia, who for the |ast 12
years, we’'ve heard nothing but Coney Island, and
especially this particular site where the buil ding
is being restored as far as the | andmark buil di ng
is concerned and it’s very exciting to see that
there is this history; rich history that Brooklyn
can continue to preserve and see for generations to
come and so | wanted to thank you for that vision
|’ ve heard and caught up with a | ot of what has
al ready been nentioned, but | wanted to confirm!|l
didn’t hear what woul d be your procurenent policy
inrelationship to this project for MABEs and LBEs,
the Local Business Enterprise conmunities, so |
just wanted to get sone el aboration on your policy

as a hol di ng conpany; any provisions in the
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contract with EDC that will acknow edge what woul d
be procurenent opportunity for the MABE comunity
and LBE.

KARL FREY: | might ask for alittle
hel p from sonmeone from EDC who’ s here because |
know | " ve reviewed the provisions in the contract.
| know there is a specific addendumto the contract
that requires procurenent and although |’ ve gone
through it, I amnot famliar with the details of
it.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: Absol utely.
EDU. . .

[ crosstal k]

KARL FREY: So..

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: |Is welcone to
come and join us.

DAVID El SENMAN. H . M nane’s David
Ei senman. In the contract between i STAR and New
York City Land Devel opnent Corporation there are
MABE provisions. At the closing, |1 STAR w Il submt
an MABE program and anti ci pates supporting a goal
of 15 percent MABE participation in the

construction of the project.
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COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: 15 percent. Wy
not 20 as per what woul d be the goal that projects
at the m ni nrum have been based on as well as just
governnent procurenment overall in the city of New
York supporting what would be Local Law 1 to be
able to spill over into what would be the private
sector? |Is there any reason why EDC woul d have
agreed to 157

DAVI D El SENMAN:  This was the
proposal we received fromi STAR and we’ d be open to
conti nui ng those di scussions.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: 1'd like to see
that; those discussions continue as chair of the
Smal | Business Comm ttee and working with our chair
or rather our |ocal council nmenber, Council Menber
Recchi a, understandi ng the background of trying to
reach what woul d be goals procured for MABEs for
opportunity. It’s very inportant that we start
recogni zing that, especially when there’s
opportunities when it’s city-owned land that is
being issued to a private entity, so a m ni num of
20 percent is what we would seek. As far as this
particul ar application is concerned; correct nme if

I’mwong, Chair, all the work that the city
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council has been gearing towards to see headway
within the MMBE cormunity. As far as this
particul ar percentage is there going to be a
noni tori ng agent on the MABES?

DAVI D El SENMAN:  Can you el aborate on
t hat ?

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: A nonitoring
agent to reach outcones of the goal

DAVI D El SENMAN:  EDC nonitors all of
our MABE requirenents through our Contracts
Depart nent .

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: So EDC is
expected to oversee what woul d be the nonitoring of
the 15 percent MABE on the hol ding conpany for...

{crosstal K]

DAVI D EI SENVAN:  Correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: For this

proj ect?

DAVI D El SENMAN:  Correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: And the LBE was
the second part of the procurenent question. |Is

there any nmention of the Local Business Enterprise?
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DAVI D El SENVAN:  Not in our docunents.
| know i STAR has conmitted to working with |oca
busi nesses.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: Can we see that
commtted into |l anguage within the contract?
[ background static] I'’mgoing to share ny mc.

DAVI D El SENVAN: W can di scuss that
with i STAR in our internal pane.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: How soon wil |
t hat conversation continue?

DAVI D El SENMAN:  As soon as possi bl e.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: And this vote is
schedul ed for when?

DAVI D El SENVAN:  Tonor r ow.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: So you have | ess
than 24 hours | would say. Correct?

DAVI D El SENMAN:  Correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: kay.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A: | woul d just
like to... M. Chair, could | just say one thing?
| would just like...

[ crosstal k]

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N:  Yes, M. Recchia.

[ crosstal k]
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COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  To say that
i STAR has been phenonenal in local hiring. There
is no other conpany out there who has done what
i STAR has done in hiring local, alright, the Suber
Foundation is the | ead over here and we have M.
Suber, who’'Il be testifying shortly, in hiring
| ocal. They have done an outstanding job in hiring
local and in working in part of the property in
getting the new garden ready and they hired the
Suber Foundati on who have been out there nade up of
| ocal hiring; Coney Island residents who' ve been
there and so | just want everyone to know that they
are keeping their word and they did this before
anyone requiring themto do it. So and they’ve
been always there to work with us in hiring |ocal
and after Superstorm Sandy i STAR was out there
hiring | ocal and putting people to work, so they’ve
been doing this for years and | you know trust them
and know them that they will you know keep on
doing this because it’s to their benefit to hire
| ocal. Thank you

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N: Do you have nore

guestions, Council Menber Reyna?
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COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: | just want to
make sure that the MABE and LBE portion is net in
the contract and | want to commend the work of
i STAR and obvi ously Council Menber Recchia knows
better than anyone the local hiring piece, but that
is something that we should not just stop as far as
local hiring is concerned and this council has made
great strides in making sure that the MABE
community and Local Business Enterprises take part
in alot of the econom c devel opnent that has
happened in the city of New York and I only | ook
forward to i STAR s conti nued success because when
we have MABE contracting and LBE contracting, we
see greater growmh in the job marked and so it’s a
benefit to our comunities and Brooklyn as a whol e,
whi ch contributes to the econonmy of our city. So |
| ook forward to hearing fromEDC as to their
achi eving what woul d be greater goal on the MABE
and 1’d imgine that there is concession rights to
this project. |Is that not true?

KARL FREY: The concession rights are a
part of the 10-year special permt and the | ease
and the sublease that i STARw Il be a part of with

EDC.
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COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: Mmhm  Yes.

KARL FREY: There’s trenendous risk
involved in the project for..

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: Mm hm

KARL FREY: For a private investor.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA:  Yes.

KARL FREY: The inposition of a
regul ati on that the governnent can work with at the
20 percent level versus a 15 percent |evel that
m ght be nore conmon in private industry...

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: Mm hm

KARL FREY: Is a strong ask, but we
have 24 hours to work on that and I’msure we'll be
back with you.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: | appreciate
that and is there any reason... would you be able
to el aborate on the risk?

KARL FREY: Certainly. Over the course
of the 10-year special permt, i STAR is obligated
to run and operate the facility and it’s specified
in the contract what that neans at a m ninumthe 15
free sunmer concerts have to be produced and..

[ crosstal k]




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 65

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA:  Mm hm

KARL FREY: (Operated as well as
operating agreenents for the Childs Restaurant
facility.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: Mm hm

KARL FREY: None of which is guaranteed
to produce any revenue so...

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: Right.

KARL FREY: So i STAR is on the hook for
the costs..

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: [interposing]
Sur e.

KARL FREY: O operating and
mai ntai ni ng the park and the restaurant and the
anphi theatre for 10 years.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: And the project
is comng with what woul d be | DA Tax Abatenent ?

KARL FREY: No.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: No... no
particul ar prograns that are...

KARL FREY: As a matter of fact, we
were pretty surprised that as city-owned |and we’l |

still be paying taxes.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 66

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: Ckay.

HOMRD VEI SS:  Council Menber, if | nmay
| think the genesis of this project is very
i nportant for everyone to understand. i STAR
controls property that constitutes a good part of
the project site. Wen they went to the borough
president to say it’s our intent to develop this
with the market rate and affordabl e housi ng that
was envi si oned, but we have concerns because Coney
West is desolate and we control 70 percent of the
devel opabl e floor area in the area, but right now
we don’'t see it noving forward, the borough
presi dent suggested perhaps you woul d consi der as
an interimtenporary use the anphitheatre facility
that could then perhaps spur on econom c interest
i n devel opi ng the housing, force the devel opnent of
the park that was envisioned and al so reactivate
the Childs buil ding.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA:  Mm hm

HOMRD VEI SS: i STAR agreed to then
settle into the city. Along the way in discussions
with EDC i STAR then was asked to stay in the mx
and then to work with the comunity-based not-for-

profit to develop this project for the city. It’s
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bei ng devel oped solely with city capital funds on
land entirely owned by the city. This entire
project is to be owned by the city and it’s sinply
going to be subleased to this partnership for the
10-year special permt term So the reality is
that this is really not a private devel opnent by a
private developer. This is a private devel oper who
has agreed with the city to aid in the devel opnent
and operation of this project for 10 years.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: And the subl ease
is for?

HOMRD WEI SS: A 10-year term

KARL FREY: | think it would be
appropriate at this tine just to nention as city
counci | mren and council persons, you should take
great pride in the staffs that work for your
various organi zations. EDC was exceedi ngly tough
on i STAR t hroughout these negotiations. This has
not been an easy project to get to the goal I|ine.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA:  Mm hm

KARL FREY: And we have been asked to
and agreed to do extraordinary things as a private
devel oper that we would normally not undertake. |If

you... if the question pops in your nmind then why
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woul d you do this, we do have an additional site
that’s slated for residential devel opnment and we
see no reason for any market or affordable housing
to be built on Coney Island. There's no economc
reason to do that absent the anphitheatre project,
so there was a great deal of give and take and hard
fought negotiations on both sides to bring this
project to where it is, and we see this project as
the catalyst that allows us to make further
investnents in Coney Island and devel op our
residential project, which is now bookended on one
end by the anphitheatre and on the other end by the
newl y renovated New York Aquarium

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: Mmhm Well, |
| ook forward to nonitoring this project beyond what
woul d be today’s and tonorrow s nmeeting. | just
want to make sure that we get to a point of making
sure that the city as a whole is investing in
partners that will commt to the work that we
have... the foundation that we have laid as far as
econom ¢ devel opnent spurring throughout all five
boroughs and this particular project has been in
the pipeline for quite sone tinme. To see it cone

to fruition is of nbst interest, but that doesn't




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 69
nmean that we can’t do better and consistently
chal | enge ourselves to do better. So thank you
very much

KARL FREY: Thank you and we respect
your advocacy.

CHAI RPERSON VEPRI N Okay wel I,
gent| enen, thank you very nmuch. W are going to
nove onto our panels in opposition to start and
then in favor until everyone is heard. Yes, there

are. So we're going to call up four people in

opposition. | remnd you that we’'re going to put
the clock on for two mnutes for each person. 1°'d
like to call up Charles Krezell; Suzanne Frazier;

Carolyn McCrory and Ann Val dez. Are all four of
you here?

[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON VEPRIN:  While we're
setting up, we are going to call on Council Menbers
Reyna and Lappin to vote on the two sidewal k cafes
that we heard earlier today that are in ful
agreenent with the council nenbers.

COW TTEE CLERK: Land Use Itens 987
and 1002. Council Menber Reyna.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNA: | vote aye.
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COW TTEE CLERK: Council Menber
Lappi n.

COUNCI L MEMBER LAPPIN:  Aye.

COWM TTEE CLERK: Vote now stands eight
in the affirmative, zero abstentions, zero
negati ves.

CHAI RPERSON VEPRI N:  Thank you. kay,
| adi es and gentleman, if you could just renenber
when you speak to please state your nane and you
can deci de who wants to go first and again, we'l|
have a two minute clock and it nakes a really
annoyi ng noi se when it’s done, just to warn you.
So who wants to go first? GCentlenman first.

CHARLES KREZELL: H . M nane is
Charles Krezell. [I'mwth Loisaida United

Nei ghbor hood Gardens, “LUNGS.” W'’re a group of 40

gardens on the Lower East Side. Last year... can
ny time... can ny tinme stop?
CHAI RPERSON WEPRIN: | think it already

started. [background voices] Yeah, |let’s change
mcs. We'Ill restart the clock. W’Il|l do a do-
over.

CHARLES KREZELL: Thank you. Hey,

hell o, hell o?
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CHAI RPERSON VPRI N Yeah, okay, speak
up and we should be starting now. Gkay, go ahead.

CHARLES KREZELL: GCkay, ny name is
Charles Krezell. I'mwth the Loisiada United
Nei ghbor hood Gardens. W represent 40 gardens on
the Lower East Side. Last year, we had a call out
from Coney |Island. The garden had been fl ooded
during Hurricane Sandy. There were three feet of
sand there. People fromny nei ghborhood and around
the city went out and hel ped them renove the sand.
There were 50 gardeners that were working in the
garden. It’'s still an active garden and |’ve been
out there four tines in the last year. It’'s a
community of inmgrants, but it’'s very nuch an
active garden. It may have been deconm ssi oned as
far as Geen Thunmb is concerned, but it’s been
active ever since and has never shut down and the
people that | have tal ked to are not happy at al
about going out there. The thing is, you guys are
building a sand castle. This is on sand. This is
a flood zone. This is not a place that you should
be putting city noney into building... this is...
it’s not right. This is... you re going to have

to... Sandy flooded the entire area and you're
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building right on the boardwal k, so | don’t see how
the city can justify putting public noney into
sonmething like that. | don't think the... it just
doesn’t make any sense; it’'s a flood zone. So
that's basically what... ny take on it. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N:  Thank you, M.
Krezell and thank you for your help on the garden
kay, ma’am \Whenever you’re ready.

[ crosstal k]

SUSAN FRAZIER MW nane... okay, ny
nane i s Susan Frazier and I’'mwith G een Acres
Community Garden in Bed-Stuy, and |’ve cone to
voi ce my opposition to the Coney Island
Amphi theatre. The boardwal k garden is a | arge
space, like ours is. Qurs is in Bed-Stuy, they're
in Coney Island and these spaces were consi dered
virtually worthless 10 or 15 years ago and during
the intervening years, these gardens have
exenplified the devotion of caring volunteers, who
faithfully tended this |land due through the crack
epidemc; the real estate crash; the hom cide
epidem c. These vol unteers denonstrated that
people in these communities care about their

nei ghbor hoods; they care about beautiful things;
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t hey care about environnmentalism Now these green
spaces are threatened by the very prosperity that
they hel ped to prosper. W can't |et big noney
interests one by one take the city’s renaining
green spaces away and turn theminto fancy real
estate projects. If we do, all the caring; all the
history; all the culture; all the beauty; all the
heal th benefits; all the environnmental benefits
that these community gardens bring to the city wll
be gone for good. Qur city will be nore fl ood-
prone and these waters that cone in with the
hurri canes will just stand and continue to weak
their devastation while it is the soul of the city
that will drain away. Thank you

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Ckay, thank you.
Next, pl ease.

CAROLYN MCCRORY: Hello. Hi,
everybody. |’mwondering if | can change the slide
to the map and just show sonmething with ny pointer.

CHAI RPERSON VWEPRIN: Woul d you mi nd
doing that for us? Wy don't we hold off the clock
for a second? What the heck. That’'s what you
wanted? This is what you want? GCkay. Onh, wow,

ni ce. [background voice] Are you going to swall ow
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that after |like swallowi ng the sword... [laughter]
and okay.

CAROLYN MCCRORY: Actually | just
wanted to show ny cat toy, but |I’ma garden nmenber
|’m al so a nenber of the Coney Island Amusenent
Famly. M nanme’s Carolyn McCrory. |’ve marched
in and | ove Coney Island USA; marched in that
parade since probably 1987 on and off. One year, |
won Judge’s Choice. | gave a lot of bribes that
year. Anyway... that’s a part of the parade for
peopl e that don’t know. Anyway, | just want to
make a coupl e factual points about the Coney Island
community in general and also the community gardens
in Coney Island and maybe a little bit about the
Anusenent area as well. First of all, ny
testinony; ny witten testinony for the Gty

Pl anni ng Conmm ssion, for sone reason, is not in the

FEI'S, so | do have copies of that. | don’t know
why it was excl uded. My comments were accepted.
They were call distributing. 1In fact, the |awer

very el oquently addressed a couple of ny points
that | nmade in ny witten testinony, which were
alternates to this plan because | feel like this

plan has a lot of heart. It has a |ot of great
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el enents, but the plan could be nade way, way
better and there’s this push, this rush; it’s okay,
this is howthe city does things. Maybe it’s
i nperfect; maybe it’s flawed, but we have to get it
in. W have to get that noney, but | do believe
that there can be a dedication for that $51 million
capital funds conmtted to this project, but also a
commtnent to nake the plan better because | do
believe it could be nmade better. | feel like the
garden site on the boardwal k is an absol ute
treasure. |It’s maybe not being used conpletely to
its full potential, but for sonme reason Gty
Pl anni ng and devel opers do not | ook at a conmunity
garden and say, “Ch ny God, we have to work around
this! It’s so amazing! This |and belongs to the
people; this land belongs to the people.” And I
feel like continually that’s pushed aside and oh,
we'll relocate them Well, five blocks... naybe
it’s only five blocks and a half away, [chine] but
that five and a half blocks is a world of dreans.
It’s not on the boardwalk. It’'s in a different
part. W' ve created a safe zone right now and to
nove us to a piece of HPD |and, which is

unprot ected; which has been discussed being a
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school over the years. HPDis not... this piece of
|l and was a relocation site and 12 different gardens
in Coney Island have already been destroyed. It
was supposed to be permanent, it was part of the
Parks Departnent and if it’s so easy to just be
wel |, you were permanent, but actually we want to
use the land, then what’'s even the point of saying
that a garden is permanent? |’ mjust asking for
the city and devel opers to open their mnd a little
and see the potential of our garden there and al so
community gardens in general. And | |ove Coney
I sl and. Yesterday, | went to the library. | tried
to swmat the new Y. Apparently the pool is
opening today. | love the Amusenent area; | work
in the Anusenent area. | totally want what’s best
for Coney Island and | just think if we put the
brakes on this a little bit and get nore peopl e at
the table; at the real table where the decisions
are being made... there should be a community
benefits agreenent on paper in witing that the
community... beforehand that the community feels
good about and the devel oper and the city all feel

good about, | think it’s a possibility and | don’t
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see that there’'s any reason why this can’t happen
even if it has to happen quickly. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON VEPRI N Ckay, | was
waiting for you to take a breath just to stop..

[ crosstal k]

CAROLYN MCCRORY:  Ckay.

[ crosstal k]

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N You, but | finally
got one. So | appreciate you bringing the issue
about your coments to FEIS. Do you have a copy of
those with you?

CAROLYN MCCRORY: | have two copies on
ny i Pad that are...

[ crosstal k]

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N:  okay.

[ crosstal k]

CAROLYN MCCRORY:  Sonehow | i nked, but I
can forward those to you.

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Yeah, if you can
get themto us, and soneone will give her the
i nformation on how to get themto us, and we wl|
raise it wth Gty Planning and find out exactly
what happened and. ..

[ crosstal k]
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CAROLYN MCCRORY:  Yeah, 1I..

[ crosstal k]

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Make sure they're
aware of them

CAROLYN MCCRORY: | also want to say as
far as that goes, one of the things |I nentioned was
alternatives the |lawer did address. That’'s the
first time | ever heard that. You know, i STAR Cod
bless them | think that they' re a great conpany.
They own the parcel on the other side of the Childs
building as well, and also | do believe that

sonet hing coul d be worked out with the ball park.

They said... I"'mnot really sure if there were ever
t hose discussions, but | feel like there is
potential there to put... sink sonme noney into that

bal | stadium and make it accessible and a pernanent

anphi theatre, not just one for 10 years because

Coney Island; the Coney Island community deserves a

per manent anphitheatre, not one for just 10 years.
CHAI RPERSON WEPRIN:  Got it. Alright,

t hank you very nuch. The |ast nenber of the panel,

pl ease. Careful. Yeah, don’t grab it by the mc.
ANN VALDEZ: Good norning, everyone.

My name is Ann Mchelle Valdez. | amborn and
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raised in Coney Island. Wen all these different
things are being discussed, it's really difficult
to... | didn't wite anything down ahead of tine
and when | speak, | speak directly fromny heart.
| don’t need to have a piece of paper to tell ne
what | should be saying. A lot of different things
have been nentioned. W tal ked about |ike for
i nstance, the hiring process. Yes, M. Keith Suber
was nentioned several tinmes. | know M. Keith
Suber personally; we were raised together, but M.
Keith Suber will not be the only person enpl oying
peopl e and he works in a position... his area is
nore in the construction decisions. GCkay, |’m not
pl anning to be a construction worker, so when we
tal k about what the wages are going to be, words
are used, but not figures, okay? W all have...
|’malso with Cormunity Voices Heard as well as the
Peopl e’ s Coalition of Coney Island, as well as many
ot her organi zations. | have spent nmy life fighting
for justice. Anywhere | need to go, | speak. M
issue here is that | think there’s too many issues
com ng up that haven’t been answered. GCkay, it was
brought up about where they' re going to place it

and we don’t believe that this is a good | ocation
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and the... for instance, the back-up of sewage; the
drai ni ng process has al ways been a problemin Coney
Island. It is still a problemin Coney Island.
cannot see why so much noney would go into
rebuilding this area and building this anphitheatre
knowi ng that yes, it is a flood zone and there’s
constant sewage problens. | appreciate our Cty
Counci | man Doneni ¢ Recchia trying to do his hardest
to get things noving, [chinme] but | don't believe
that this is really beneficial to the community and
the cormunity didn't really have a say init. It
was never actually discussed in full and | believe
there’s too nmany unanswer ed questions [background
voice] for this project to nove forward and no
guesti ons asked.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N:  Ckay, thank you,
M ss Val dez. Council Menber Recchia has a question
or a conment.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  No, no, not a
guestion. |1’d like to comment about the sewer
i ssue. GCkay, in the rezoning of Coney Island,
alright, there is an agreenent between... in the
agreenents that $300 million will be spent to

upgrade the sewers in Coney Island. The first
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phase, there’'s $135 million in the budget for the
sewer to be upgraded; for all the infrastructure to
start. It’s in the planning stages now, but |
believe the contract is going out to bid and the
project is supposed to start the end of... sonetine
during 2015, so the nobney is... the sewer problem
is being addressed and it’s addressed in the
rezoning and there’s $135 nillion in the budget
ri ght now, okay, and as we go ahead, they will have
a better idea of how nuch nore it’s going to cost
and the city has agreed to put that noney in, so
the sewers will be addressed, so just so the Coney
I sl and community knows that.

ANN VALDEZ: When was this agreenent
made?

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Wen the
rezoni ng of Coney I sl and.

ANN VALDEZ: 200472

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Yes.

ANN VALDEZ: That’s al nost 10 years
ago.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHIA:  No, no, it
was. .. but when we passed it and | believe we

passed it in 2008... nine... 2009 it was passed at
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that time. At that tine the city put in $135
mllion, the noney is still there and the noney
w |l stay there and the project is going to begin
and the DEP had to do a najor plan that is being...

[ crosstal k]

ANN VALDEZ: And it took themto make
t hat plan?

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A:  Yes, the
sewer. ..

[ crosstal k]

ANN VALDEZ: Because the sewer’s been a
probl em for many years.

COUNCI L MEMBER RECCHI A1 | know. It’s
been very well ..

[ crosstal k]

ANN VALDEZ: And | don’t think it
shoul d be everything... everyone to be rushing now
to get everything to | ook pretty for the
anphitheatre. | believe that the residents of
Coney |sland have been | eft out and not cared for
for too many years. W’ ve had a sewer problem
have raised three children, alright? Two of ny
children are adults. | have grandchildren. This

is ridiculous. | have taken ny son to school in PS
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188, which is one of your favorite schools there,
and | have taken ny children to school in water
that was knee-high. | had to pick themup from
school at that tinme. So with the sewer problem and
now we had Hurricane Sandy, all that sewage backed
up. All the ocean water; the bay water all backed
up. It was horrible, the snell. God knows how
toxic the water is; howtoxic the land is. | don't
think that waiting four years we should sit here
and pat anyone on the back for meking an effort.
An effort shoul d’ ve been made years ago. This is
all being done to push through this anphitheatre,
whi ch once again, | say is being a rushed job and
not enough questions are bei ng answered ahead of
time to make sure everything and everyone i s going
to be taken care of.

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Thank you, M ss

Val dez.

ANN VALDEZ: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N: W appreciate it.
Thank you very nmuch, panel. 1°d now |like to cal

up a panel in favor. Again, we're going to limt
people to two mnutes. Martin Levine, D ck Zigun,

Johanna Zaki and Keith Suber. | amgoing to step




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 84
out for a mnute. Council Menber Conrie, the chair

of the Land Use Conmittee, is going to supervise

and chair for a mnute. | just have to address one
i ssue, so I'll be back
[ Pause]

MARTI N LEVI NE: Okay, thank you. Thank
you, council nenbers. | support the proposal as
passed by the... Martin Levine is ny nane. |’'ma
menber of Community Board 13 and Land Use Committee
Chai rman of Community Board 13 from’' 96 to 2000,
and | spent 10 years as the Director of Coney
| sl and Devel opnent Corporation. | support the
proposal as passed by the Community Board 13 joint
Econom ¢ Devel opnent Land Use Committees with the
following cooments: due to the hard work of the
Friends of Terra Cotta and other comrunity groups
in February 2003, the Childs building on the
Ri gel mann Boar dwal k and West 21st Street was
decl ared a | andmark. The | andmarki ng, although a
public relations high point, is a cormmunity and
devel opnent nightmare. The hazardous materials on
the site preclude the use of the building by
residents or groups for amusenent or entertai nnent

of any sort. W have that in Addendum A. The
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stringent | andmarking requirenents, under which
construction and renedi ati on woul d take place, nake
the rehabilitation of the building unaffordable.
That’ s why Taconic I nvestnent Partners could not
pursue its nodernization. That's why New York City
had to step in to transfer ownership. The building
continues to lie enpty decades after it has gone
out of use. The exterior nmay be pleasing to the
eye, but the building itself poses an environnental
hazard, what with the interior rotting, decaying
and filled with the hazardous substances such as
asbestos containing material, PCBs and fuel oi
residue. Danage from Hurricane Sandy | eaves in
guestion whether or not nold abatenent was or may
have successfully been perforned on a vacant
bui | di ng, and even though boarded up, how long wil |l
it take to becone a refuge for the honel ess, for
drug use and a haven for those who have no desire
to see a revitalization in the West End of Coney
I sland? One of the mandates of the redevel opnent
pl an for Coney West is to stinulate increased use
of that area on a 12-nonth a year basis. This is
beneficial to not only encourage growmh in the

| ocal econony, but to reduce crinme. The perfect
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exanple of this is the eastern end of the
Ri egel mann Boar dwal k where restaurants and

pedestrians traffic [chinme] flourish and where a

12-nmonth a year sustainable econony local... well
okay, if you want ne to stop, I'll stop, but...
anyway. . .

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: [ nterposing]
" msorry.

MARTI N LEVINE: The bottomline is that
one of the major problens is the... you know, the
Childs building that has to be renediated and it
w Il be renedi ated as part of the anphitheatre plan
and the other two points | had, which were in the
addendum were addressing the community gardens
i ssue and the conmunity benefits agreenent.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Thank you

MARTI N LEVI NE:  Ckay.

DCK ZIGUN. |I'’m D ck Zigun, founder
and Artistic Director of Coney Island USA. W are
the not-for-profit in the joint venture with i STAR
for this wonderful project. 1’ve personally been
invested in this site for over a decade. It was
Coney Island USA with Friends of Terra Cotta that

got the landmark status for Childs Restaurant at a
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time when 21st Street was basically a location for
crinme, drug use and prostitution solicitation. The
adj acent property | hel ped advocate to bring the
circus in for Marty Markowitz to do his concerts
there in an uninproved |ot, which to this day has
broken sidewal ks. W are building a park where
there were only enpty lots and buses. W are
taking a | andmark buil ding, the best quality
building in Coney Island, revitalizing it and
restoring it. W are bringing jobs and I would
like to point out that when the rezoni ng happened
several years back, | wasn’'t happy, but thanks to
hard wor ki ng politicians, Domenic Recchia and Marty
Mar kowi t z, who, even when the rezoni ng was done,
listened to dissent frompeople like ne in their
community and fixed the plan and nmade the plan
better. To the opposition, |I want to point out
that unity is a two-way street. |f you destroy
this project you don't get $53 million to do other
things in Coney Island. W are in this together.

Pl ease support us; we wll support you. O course
your concerns are legitimate that Coney Island the
West End has gotten a rotten deal, but learn the

political process. Formalliances with the
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anusenent park. Don’t be a hater of our project
sol ving our decades |ong probl ens when you want us
[chine] involved working with you in the future,
whi ch we are anxious to do. Thank you.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Thank you. The
next person.

JOHANNA ZAKI: Good norning. M nane
is Johanna Zaki. |1'’mthe Director of QOperations
for the Alliance for Coney Island and I’ m speaki ng
on behal f of the Alliance here today. The Alliance
for Coney Island is dedicated to the conti nuing
transformati on of Coney Island into a year-round
wor | d-cl ass recreational oceanfront destination.
Qur founding nenbers represent Coney |sland s ngjor
busi ness and non-profit stakehol ders, whose
institutions collectively have over 330 years of
history in Coney Island. The Alliance brings
t oget her | ocal businesses, comunity organizations
and residents to work together on initiatives that
foster further devel opnent, pronote increased
visitorship and support Coney I|sland s vibrant,
substantial conmunity of over 50,000 residents.

The Alliance for Coney Island is in favor of the

proposed Seasi de Park and Comunity Arts Center.
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As outlined, the project conplenents the Alliance’s
wor k and m ssion by acconplishing nultiple
obj ectives. Advanci ng Coney Island s upward novi ng
progress, as outlined by the published rezoning
pl ank, provides increased programr ng opportunities
for the area, including free entertai nnent options
for the benefit of |ocal residents, attracts new
audi ences and draws increased vistorship year-
round. It stinulates economc activity with an
i ncreased denmand for goods and services that
support other businesses and generate new busi ness
opportunities and support | ocal workforce
devel opnment by maki ng new j ob pl acenent
opportunities available for |ocal residents. Thank
you.

KEI TH SUBER:. Good norni ng, everyone.

My nane is... you guys should know. | want to
t hank Ann Val dez for giving nme that great
introduction. M nane is Keith Suber. |'mthe
Executive Director of the Suber Foundation in Coney
I sl and, Brooklyn, and I'’malso a principal with a
construction conpany called 911 Honesavers, and
i STAR has been working extrenely closely with us to

make sure that people fromthe community are hired.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 90
| know for sure that councilmen along with other
el ected officials gave us funding to nake sure that
peopl e had their OSHA cards, scaffolding training,
flaggi ng and we wanted to make sure that those
certificated go to work. | wasn’t expecting for ny
nane to be called that much, but you know, | really
appreciate it and | just want to let ny fellow
comruni ty peopl e know, other organizations, that |
don’t want to be | ooked at as the | ead person on
this project in helping this project nove forward,
but the thing is that there has been opportunity
granted through this. W all know certain
i ndividual s that represent i STAR cane out and net
with us, and the purpose of that neeting was for us
to forward our concerns in witing, so this way we
can have a voice. The opportunity is there, but

what we have to do is put it in witing and demand

what you want. |I'mnot in the position because I
have nmy lips puffed up. I’min the position because
| got on the phone every norning; | beat Domenic

Recchi a’s phone up; | beat i STAR s phone up and |
spoke up about jobs in other communities and that’s
what | do and | heard Karen behind ne say, “That’s

true,” ‘cause | call her all the tine as well.
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[laughter] Okay, so it’s definitely not about what
t he Suber Foundation is doing alone. |It’s just
that I’mtaking the initiative to be persistent
because persistence overcones resistance and if
that $51 or $53 million is not used for that
proposed project, it’s not guaranteed [chinme] to go
back into that project... | nmean to go back into
the infrastructure work, so we mght just |ose that
capital in all and if i STAR pulls out, then that
property will be dormant for the next 10 years and
is that what we really want for our comunity?

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Thank you
Thank you for com ng down and testifying today and
al so for your participation and conmunity service
in the Coney Island area. Qur next panel is Ray
Fi gueroa, President of New York City Comrunity
Garden Coalition and Sheila Smalls from Cl People’s
Coalition. |s anyone else here that wanted to
testify either in opposition or for? [background
voi ce] Sonebody el se might’ve cone in. |’mjust
asking. Can | ask a question? Thank you. |Is
t here anybody el se that wanted to... [background
voice] I know. I'’mjust asking. Well, we’'re going

to... this is not the | ast panel of the day. W’re
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just checking if anybody else didn’'t sign up,
right, in opposition. ay, Mss Snalls, can you
use that far mc over there, not the other one.
Yes. Thank you. You can put that on the floor so
they don’'t use it anynore. Thank you.

SHEI LA SMALLS: ‘ Kay.

COUNCI L MEMBER COMVRI E:  Yes, whenever
you' re ready.

SHEI LA SMALLS: Ckay, good... good

after... well, I don't knowif it’s afternoon or
norning. Wat tinme is it? WlIlI, whatever. good
nor ni ng, Council, everyone here. M nane is Sheila
Smalls. | amthe Executive Director of ClI Youth
Alive. | amalso on the Black National NetworKk.

|’ m an outstandi ng nenber and al so a nenber of the
Peopl e’s Coalition of Coney Island. | amhere to
say that I'mreally not really opposed, but that’s
the only thing that they give you ‘cause you're
either for it or you're against it. The way it is
right now, I’magainst it. GCkay, |I’mnot a hater,
okay, but the point is first of all, they did not
neet with the community as a whole to say, “Well
is this what you want?” | went door-to-door to

2007, which is directly across the street fromthe
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proposed anphitheatre, and knocked on doors; talked
to people in English, in Spanish; broken, of
course, and asked themdid they know about this
nonstrosity that they was going to put there and
were they in favor of it or did they want it or did
they not want it. A lot of people are not even
aware of it, so |I'd say that they really... the
community really needs to be involved. |If you want
to do sonething involve the conmmunity. W have
i nput; we have feelings. You can’'t walk in
sonmebody’ s house and just say, “Here, take this.”
No, that’s not the way it’'s done. It’s not the way
it’s done. And you talk about we can work
together. Well, sure, let’s sit down. Let’s make
a talk. The i STAR peopl e asked us to cone and
speak with them the Coalition came and spoke with
t hem and what they did was go back to the next
council neeting and say, “Yeah, we net with the
peopl e, but nothing was... you know, nothing was
ever settled. W just had a talk and that was it.”
kay, so there should be sonme comrunity-based
agreenent. There should be you know, a |ot of
conversation before this is rushed through because

it is a good idea and perhaps it will help a | ot of
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people. Okay, Dick Zi gun, nobody on the West End
knows who you are. | know who you are because | go
down to the anusenents, so to say that you' re the
Mayor of Coney Island, that’s sonething that |
guess the borough president just thought of because
there are CBGs in Coney Island that could have
surely wanted to be on that process to be picked to
see if they could work along with i STAR  They did
not even consult the other CBGOs. (Ckay, so being a
person from Coney Island, born and raised out
there... Karen, | |love you, but guess what? All of
ya' || owe Donenic sonething. | don’t owe him
anything. Gkay, | don’t owe him anything. GCkay,
you work for himand everybody that’s com ng to...

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRIE:  You're..

[ crosstal k]

SHEI LA SMALLS: Tal k owes him
somet hi ng.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  You're over two
m nut es.

SHEI LA SMALLS: GCh, |I'msorry.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  That’s okay.

SHEI LA SMALLS:  Ckay.
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COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Thank you

SHEI LA SMALLS: Alright.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Thanks for
com ng in.

SHEI LA SMALLS: Thank you.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: Mm hm

SHEI LA SMALLS: Ckay, so we just need
to have a conversation

RAYMOND FI GUERCA:  Yes. .

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Go ahead.

RAYMOND FI GUERCA: Thank you for this
opportunity. M nane is Raynond Figueroa, Jr. |
am President of the New York City Community Garden
Coalition and I just want to thank the
di sti ngui shed, honorable nmenbers of this
subcommttee for this opportunity. |’mjust going
to cut to it because of the tinme. The Fina
Envi ronmental | npact Statenent that ran through in
conjunction with the ULURP process is extrenely
flawed. The Final Environnental |npact based
i nproperly cited Section 6E3 of the 2002 Garden
Agreenent between the State of New York and the

Cty of New York, according to that Final
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Envi ronment al [ npact Statenent, the Boardwal k
Conmunity Garden, |ocated on Block 771, Lot 142,
was decomm ssioned by the city in 2004. The FEI S
clained that the city followed a process for
decomm ssi oni ng gardens that was authorized under
that Section 6E3 of the 2002 agreenent between the
City and the State of New York Attorney Ceneral’s
Ofice, but the Final Environnental | npact

nformati on.

St atement overl| ooked a key piece of
The 2002 agreenment created two lists of conmunity
gardens: 1. Gardens that were owned under the
jurisdiction of Parks were listed as Parks QOpen
Space. 2. Second |ist, gardens that were under the
jurisdiction of various city agencies and were
listed under the title Subject to Devel opnent.

Boar dwal k Garden was under Parks Open Space Parks
Departnent, as part of Parks Open Space list. W
wWill submt a copy of this list. It will be
forthcom ng, which we obtained fromthe city, as
per that agreenent. The Section E3 only applies to
gardens that were Subject to Devel opnent list, so
the city was never authorized to use Section E3 of
the 2002 agreenent to decommi ssion the Boardwal k

Community Garden. Several part of that FEIS were
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based on the assunption that the Boardwal k
Conmuni ty Garden was properly decomm ssioned using
that section process. [chine] As such, it is
necessary according to rel evant governing rules and
regul ations to prepare the new Environnent al
| mpact, which accounts for the fact that the garden
was not properly deconmm ssioned. Furthernore, the
garden is not park |and, and as such, it is subject
to public trust park | and procedures for park |and
alienation and there are three things, and 1’11
just finish. This map represents the city's clear,
unequi vocal manifestation of attenpt to dedicate
this particular garden as park land. This park
| and has been accepted for park | and purposes and
this park |and has been used park | and purposes as
a community garden. Therefore, taken together,
this is an irrevocabl e dedi cati on of Boardwal k
Community Garden as park land and it represents an
erroneous attenpt on the city's part to
deconmm ssion this conmunity...

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: Thank you

[ crosstal k]

RAYMOND FI GUEROQA: Garden and it’'s...
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[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Thank you

RAYMOND FI GUERCA: Conpl etely wi thout a
| egal basis.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Ckay, we have
your. ..

[ crosstal k]

RAYMOND FI GUERCA: Thank you.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: W have your
entire testinony and...

[ crosstal k]

RAYMOND FI GUEROA:  Yes.

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: W can take a
| ook at it. Thank you for com ng..

[ crosstal k]

RAYMOND FI GUERCA: Thank you very nmnuch

[ crosstal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Down and
testifying. Thank you. W have the next panel:
Ant hony Butler from St. John’s Bread and Life;
Wecliffe WIkinson fromFutures in Education;

Ni col e Robi nson fromthe New York Aquarium and

Eddi e Mark from Comunity Board 13.
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ANTHONY BUTLER: ‘ Kay, want ne to go
ahead?

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Yes, whenever
you' re ready.

ANTHONY BUTLER Wl |, good afternoon.
|’ m Ant hony Butler from St. John’s Bread and Life.
St. John’s Bread and Life is the | argest energency
food provider in Brooklyn, providing over a mllion
neal s; energency neals to fol ks | ast year through
our soup kitchen, our food pantry and our nobile
soup kitchen. One of our outreaches is that we
provi ded over 120,000 neals to the Coney Island
community, and |’ m here speaking in support of this
because the hunger problemin New York City, where
one in five New Yorkers uses energency food, is not
a problem of food access. It’s a problem of
poverty. And with the caveat that this devel opnent
hires fol ks, brings prevailing wage jobs to the
conmunity, provides this cash conming in; this $52
mllion comng into the community, that’s how
hunger is addressed. And as it works towards that,
| support that project. | also support it onits
other kind of venue is that it’s supporting the

non-profit and the conmunity-based groups,
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primarily through Coney I|sland USA, but other
groups because those kinds of resources are very
necessary for the non-profit comrunity. [’ m
usual Iy here asking for noney fromthe City
Council, who are generous, but still, all ny
government funding is only seven percent of ny
entire budget. | have to raise $4 mllion a year
to feed hungry New Yorkers and that cones fromthe
community. It cones fromthe business comunity
and it conmes frominvestors. |t conmes from
fundraisers and all of that. So | support this
project on both |levels that it provides prevailing
wage j obs and good jobs and investnent in the
community to address the issues of poverty and that
it partner with the community to provide
opportunities. Thank you

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Thank you for
bei ng succinct. Next person?

WYCLI FFE W LKI NSON: Good afternoon
comm ttee nmenbers and thanks for the opportunity to
speak. My nane is Wcliffe WIlkinson and | amthe
Associ ate Director of Devel opnent for Futures in
Education. W are a non-profit foundation, which

provi des needs-based tuition assistance
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schol arships to fam lies nmaking | ess than $28,000 a
year and | ast year, our foundation provided $7
mllionin aid to famlies seeking a granmmar school
education of their choice in Brooklyn and Queens in
the best interests of their children. W believe
that the only way to truly conbat poverty is
t hrough education with results, and each year anong
the many events that we hold to reach our goal is
through the Great Irish Fair, which is held at
Coney Island. Currently, the proceeds fromthe
Geat Irish Fair help Coney Island directly affect
and assist famlies in providing their children
with the education that they need and there is no
venue for the fair. The Geat Irish Fair in Coney
| sl and, because there’s no venue, we nust pay for
stages, restroons and other essentials to operate
the event safely. This takes noney out of the
pockets of the needy famlies that we serve and
with the construction of the anphitheatre, we wll
be able to have a venue for the Geat Irish Fair
and | ower our costs and allow us to get closer to
our $11 mllion goal, of which we currently fal
short of. The building of this anphitheatre wll

be beneficial to our famlies making | ess than the
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$28, 000 a year and provide a real chance for those
children | ooking to break the cycle of poverty.
Thank you

NI COLE ROBI NSON- ETI ENNE:  Good
afternoon. M nane is N col e Robinson-Etienne. |
am the Assistant Director of Governnent and
Community Affairs for the New York Aquarium | am
here today to express support for the Seaside Park
and Conmunity Arts Center. The project, as you’' ve
al ready heard, includes the construction of the
anphitheatre and a public park. It will further
the goal s of Coney Island being a year-round worl d-
cl ass recreational oceanfront destination. This
proposal, of course, will enliven the western end
of the Coney Island Boardwal k and create new
facilities for passive and active recreation,
out door and i ndoor entertainnent, dining and
catering and enpl oynent opportunities for Coney
Island residents. In addition, the project wll
finally restore the historic Childs Restaurant
building, giving newlife to a beautiful, but
negl ected | andmark, becom ng an active venue for
catered events and year-round indoor entertainnent.

Just as the aquarium provi des a year-round anchor
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to Coney Island community on the eastern end of the
anmusenent district, this project will do the sane
to the western end. The Seaside Park and Community
Arts Center will beconme an econonic catal yst for
the comunity by diversifying and expandi ng
per manent enpl oynent opportunities to nei ghborhood
residents, providing public anenities to residents
and tourists and spur the city' s investnent into
addressing the community’s infrastructure needs.
The anphitheatre is a critical part of the
conti nued health of Coney Island and further
bol sters Brooklyn's reputation as a cultural hot
spot for New York City. Thank you very nuch

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Thank you

EDDI E MARK:  Good norni ng, counci
nmenbers, comunity menbers and guests. M/ nane is
Eddi e Mark and I am the Chairman of the Community
Board 13. | amin support of this project for our
nei ghborhood. As we see the big picture; that
t here have been things happening in Coney Island.
W have new attractions, fromthe baseball stadium
to the Luna Park to the B&B Carousell and the
Parachute Junp. This is only going to add to the

nei ghborhood. W had the YMCA that opened two
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weeks ago and we were very, very happy w th what
Doneni ¢ has done with Marty and it’s a big plus to
the area. Since the zoning, a |ot has changed. W
have done... Alliance for Coney Island, which has
hel ped with the job training with the anusenent and
t he people in the nei ghborhood to get permanent
jobs and to work with job fairs. W also see that
this can work as a year-round destination by having
this theatre here. Qur board and the subcommittee
has voted 10 to one for this project. The full
conmttee did not... the General Board did not vote
for it, due to sone of the outcries in the
community seats, but we do support this, as nyself
for the community at large. Thank you

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Thank you al

for comng. Nowjust a question. You said Irish

Festival ?

WYCLI FFE W LKINSON: The Geat Irish
Fair, vyes.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: The Great Irish
Fair.

WYCLI FFE W LKI NSON:  Yes, sir
COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: Ckay and you

have an Irish derivative?
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WYCLI FFE W LKI NSON:  Mysel f?  Yeah
I’m .. [laughter] luckily... actually especially at
the festival.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E:  Right, right.
Vell, ny last name actually is from Scotl and.

WYCLI FFE W LKI NSON:  Ch, wow.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: Right, so.
was j ust asking.

WYCLI FFE W LKINSON:  Ch, well, sone of
the... many of the children that we serve cone from
vari ous backgrounds so..

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: Al right.

WYCLI FFE W LKERSON: It hel ps us get to
the constituents in between so...

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRIE: | got it. I'm
just having a little fun, but Conrie, there is a
town in Scotland called Conrie actually. | haven't
been there yet. Last panel? Oh, God, the
Chai rperson i s back.

CHAI RPERSON VWEPRIN:  [of f mic] Yeah,
|’ msorry.

COUNCI L MEMBER COVRI E: See, | was
starting to act |ike himnmaking jokes and

everything. [laughter]
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CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N Thank you, Counci
Menber Conrie, for your help. | apologize that I
had to step out for a while.

[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON VEPRIN:  Alright, so I'd
like to call up the foll ow ng people in favor of
the project: Paul Custer, Benjam n Hunter and
Ant hony Hayes. |s there anyone else here who is
here to testify whose nanme | haven't called yet?
Good, good. That’'s good | didn't m ss anybody.

So, gentlenen, are we mssing... we're... alright,
we may be m ssing soneone and | understand it’'s a
late... if the hour’s late we sonetines |ose
peopl e, but these are the three who had testified
in favor, so gentlenmen, whenever you' re ready,

pl ease state your nane for the record.

BENJAM N HUNTER:  Yes, good nor ni ng,
| adi es and gentlenen in attendance and honorabl e
council menbers. M nanme is Benjamin Hunter. |’ve
been a resident of Coney Island for the past 30
years, probably longer on and off. | was raised by
ny aunt out there. | work closely with Keith Suber
fromthe Suber Foundation and | just briefly want

to express ny support froml shall say froma
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| aborer’s point of view, like I just worked in
construction throughout the years; ny father worked
there. 1In fact, he hel ped build houses from when
they were bungalows to a |lot of the high-rise
devel opnent projects that currently exist out
there. In short, | think everything that really
needs to be said in favor has been nentioned.
However, it should al so be pointed out froma
grassroots level, i STAR has intensely attenpted to
contact our conmunity representatives, as well as
community activists through various neans. They
have been extrenely successful through the Suber
Foundati on, who, as we are speaking now, we're
currently trying to devel op other ways to inform
and enlighten other conmunity nenbers and ot her
communi ty groups so that they can becone proactive
in the process and in the devel opnent of this
project, which is desperately needed out there, not
only for the infrastructure; for the sewer, et
cetera, et cetera, but also for the enhancenent and
the training of a lot of the individuals that cone
from Coney Island, which this will provide an
opportunity for themto learn skills, becone a

little bit nore responsible as individuals and take
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advantage of a lot of the prograns that’'s going to
be offered as a result of the project noving
forward and being completed. Wth that, |1’ mclear.
Thank you

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  That’'s great. Can
we see where you live on this map or no? W may
get... do you want a cat toy to point it out?

BENJAM N HUNTER:  2749.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N:  Okay, alright.

BENJAM N HUNTER. A little farther
down.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRIN: A little further
down, okay. Thank you.

BENJAM N HUNTER: Mmhm  You're
wel cone.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N Gentl enen, put the
cat play away, okay.

PAUL CUSTERT M nane is Paul Custer
and the Senior Vice President of the YMCA of New
York city. On Decenber 6th, about 10 days ago, we
had the great opportunity and great honor of being
able to cut the ribbon at the Coney Island YMCA and
many fol ks here were in attendance, and obviously,

Counci | Menber Recchia certainly presided at the
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event, along with the borough president. W are
proud to be able to add our 24th YMCA to the
nei ghbor hoods in New York City and we feel a
speci al responsibility to nake sure that we nake
this an extraordinarily accessible comunity
center. W also have | earned from experience that
when we open new YMCAs, there is an awful | ot of
interest in participating in activities and often
our prograns get filled and havi ng access to other
simlar types of spaces for certain types of events
is always very good, and so we very nuch support
the project and see that the Y Prograns wl|
certainly have anple use of the space. W also
expect that we will work cooperatively with other
communi ty youth organi zations to be able to make
sure that prograns are going to be avail abl e that
can use the space. Thank you

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N: Thank you. 1’ m
sorry. Sir, you're testifying as well, yes? Ckay,
t hank you. Just tell us your nane.

ANTHONY HAYES. Okay, ny nane is
Ant hony Hayes. |’mrepresenting the 911 Honmesavers
and the Suber Foundation. i STAR and Avi son Young

have been very instrunental in helping us hire
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| ocal conmunity residents doing any construction
wor k; teaching people different trades; teaching
people different skills; being able to utilize
them getting people off the street and actually
doi ng somet hi ng productive with their lives. So
I’min favor of this project and hopefully with the
comm tnment fromi STAR and Avi son Young to actually
hire community residents, I'mdefinitely in favor
for this project.

CHAI RPERSON VEPRI N:  Thank you
Ant hony. Thank you very rmuch. Let ne see if Marty
| eft, okay. Gentlenen, thank you very nuch. W
appreciate it. | want to thank everyone for their
time and patience today. W’'re going to close this
hearing. W wll not be voting today. So I'm
going to close the hearing on this one, Land Use
Nunbers 994 through 999 inclusive. The next Zoning
Subcommittee will actually be tonorrow norning at
the Gty Hall Commttee Room 9:15 in the norning,
followed by the Land Use Comrittee at 9:30. And
with that in mnd, the neeting is now adj our ned.
Thank you

[ gavel ]
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